
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – September 12, 2022   Page 1 of 3 

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL - COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 300 W. MAIN STREET 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2022 AT 6:00 PM 

AGENDA 

BRIEFING SESSION - 6:00 PM 

It is the intent of the Planning and Zoning Commission to be briefed by staff, and that all items on the 

agenda shall be available or open for discussion during the Briefing Session.  The Planning and  Zoning 

Commission may ask applicants and other interested parties for information or presentations.  All 

interested parties are invited to attend.  Briefings are taped. 

Call to Order 

Agenda Review 

REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 PM 

Call to Order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not the agenda by 

completing and submitting a speaker card. 

PUBLIC HEARING CONSENT AGENDA 

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be approved 

by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public Hearing Consent Agenda 

items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be considered separately.  The 

Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from the Public Hearing Consent Agenda. 

1. Approval of Minutes of the August 22, 2022, P&Z meeting 

PUBLIC HEARING POSTPONEMENT, RECESS, CONTINUATIONS 

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.6 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing for which 

notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or after the time and place 

the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed and continued any time after the 

hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.6.C of the UDC states if a postponement or continuance of a 

public hearing is to a specific date and time no later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, 

the announcement of the postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has 

been postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and no 

1



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – September 12, 2022   Page 2 of 3 

additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct staff to re-

notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet commenced. 

2. SUP-22-06-0024 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Victron Convenience and Gas (City Council 

District 4). Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a Convenience Store with Gas Sales and a 

Carwash on 4.528 acres. Tract 5B2 and 6C2 of the Jerome C Survey, Abstract 972, City of 

Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-255A, within the SH 360 Corridor Overlay 

District, and located at the NE corner of Lynn Creek/Mildred Walker Pkwy and SH-360 

3. CPA-22-07-0008 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Ascend at Forum (City Council District 

2). Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the Future Land Use Map from Mixed 

Residential to High Density Residential and Medium Density Residential on 17.782 acres. 

Multiple parcels located within the Charles D. Ball Survey, Abstracts 197 and 1699, City of 

Grand Prairie, Tarrant and Dallas Counties, Texas, zoned Planned Development (PD-265A) for 

Single Family, Multi-Family, and General Retail Uses, within the I-20 Corridor Overlay 

District with an approximate address of 2300 S Forum Dr 

4. ZON-22-05-0015 – Ascend at Forum (City Council District 2). Zoning Change from PD-265 

for Single Family, Multi-Family, and General Retail Uses to a Planned Development District 

for Single Family Zero Lot Line, Single Family Townhome, and Multi-Family and a Concept 

Plan depicting 522 units on 65.672 acres. Multiple parcels located within the Charles D. Ball 

Survey, Abstracts 197 and 1699, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant and Dallas Counties, Texas, 

zoned Planned Development (PD-265A) for Single Family, Multi-Family, and General Retail 

Uses, within the I-20 Corridor Overlay District with an approximate address of 2300 S Forum 

Dr 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

5. STP-22-08-0038 - Site Plan – First Baptist Church at 950 Mayfield (City Council District 2). 

Site Plan for Family Life Center on 19.30 acres. Lot 1R, Block 1, First Baptist Church of Grand 

Prairie Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD- 91, within the SH-

161 and I-20 Corridor Overlay Districts, and addressed as 950 Mayfield Road 

PUBLIC HEARING  

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under Public Hearing 

Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a request to speak card.  A 

person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her support or opposition to a case 

without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the entrance to the City Council Chambers 

and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five 

minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those 

favoring the request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments 

for the request.  Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that representatives be 

appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  Commissioners may have 

questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to answer the Commission's questions 

will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole 

or in part, by a unanimous vote of the Commission. 

2



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – September 12, 2022   Page 3 of 3 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible. If you plan to attend this public meeting and you have a 

disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 hours in advance. 

Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs. 

MESSAGE OF RELIGIOUS WELCOME 

As many of you are aware, we customarily begin our meetings with an invocation. This prayer is 

intended for the benefit of the board members and is directed to them and not the audience. Those who 

deliver the invocation may reference their own religious faith as you might refer to yours when offering 

a prayer. We wish to emphasize, however, that members of all religious faiths are welcome, not only in 

these meetings, but in our community as well. The participation of all our citizens in the process of self-

government will help our fine city best serve the good people who live here. Employees and audience 

members are welcome to pray or not pray, and this choice will have no bearing on any vote made by the 

board. 

 

Certification 
 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the Planning 

and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted September 09, 2022. 
 

 

Monica Espinoza, Planning Secretary 

 

3



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/12/2022 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza 

PRESENTER: Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner 

TITLE: Approval of Minutes of the August 22, 2022, P&Z meeting 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – August 22, 2022   Page 1 of 6 

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL - COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 300 W. MAIN STREET 

MONDAY, AUGUST 22, 2022 AT 5:30 PM 

MINUTES 

BRIEFING SESSION - 5:30 PM 

Chairperson Smith called the Briefing meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  

Call to Order 

PRESENT 

Chairperson Cheryl Smith 

Vice Chairperson Max Coleman 

Secretary Julia Perez 

Commissioner John Fedorko 

Commissioner Ana Coca 

Commissioner Martin Caballero 

Commissioner Michelle Madden 

Commissioner Frank Gonzalez 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Quentin Pete Jr. 

 

Agenda Review 

7. STP-22-07-0035 - Site Plan - Trinity Basin Preparatory (City Council District 2). Site Plan for 

Trinity Basin Preparatory School on 9.439 acres. Tract 5.1, Edward O'Connor Survey, Abstract 

1100, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development (PD-99) with 

Genera Retail (GR) uses, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District with an approximate 

address of 3116 Carrier Pkwy 

 Senior Planner Dana Woods presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

Chairperson Smith stated concern with traffic. Transportation Planner Brett Huntsman stated a 

Traffic Impact Analysis was done.  

8. STP-22-07-0034 - Site Plan - 2400 W Marshall Dr Industrial Warehouse (City Council District 

1). Site Plan for a Warehouse/Distribution center on 9.55 acres. Site 7, Great Southwest 

Industrial District, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI), 

and addressed as 2400 W Marshall Dr 

 Senior Planner Dana Woods presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

9. SUP-22-07-0028 - Specific Use Permit - Cielo Azul Banquet Hall (City Council District 5). 

Specific Use Permit for a Special Event Center on 0.364 acres. Lot 1, Block C, Chase Addition, 

5

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – August 22, 2022   Page 2 of 6 

City of Grand Prairie, Dallas, County, Texas, zoned General Retail One (GR-1), within the 

Central Business District addressed as 503 W Church St 

 Senior Planner Dana Woods presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 PM 

Chairperson Smith called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. 

Call to Order 

PRESENT 

Chairperson Cheryl Smith 

Vice Chairperson Max Coleman 

Secretary Julia Perez 

Commissioner John Fedorko 

Commissioner Ana Coca 

Commissioner Martin Caballero 

Commissioner Michelle Madden 

Commissioner Frank Gonzalez 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Quentin Pete Jr. 

 

Commissioner Perez led the Invocation. 

Chairperson Smith led the Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag and Texas Flag. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

None 

PUBLIC HEARING CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion made by Commissioner Coleman, Seconded by Commissioner Perez to close the public hearing 

and approve items one through six. The motion carried 8-0. Voting Yea: Chairperson Smith, 

Commissioner Coleman, Commissioner Madden, Commissioner Perez, Commissioner Gonzalez, 

Commissioner Fedorko, Commissioner Coca, Commissioner Caballero. 

1. Approval of Minutes of the August 08, 2022, P&Z meeting 

 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

 

2. PLT-22-07-0073 - Final Plat - Calvary Baptist Church (City Council District 6). Final Plat of 

Lot 1, Block A, Calvary Church/Robinson Road Addition, creating one non-residential lot on 

5.00 acres. Tract 12.1 Thomas J. Tone Survey, Abstract No. 1460, Page 235, City of Grand 

Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (A), and addressed as 5125 Robinson Rd 

 

6

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – August 22, 2022   Page 3 of 6 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

 

3. PLT-22-06-0071 - Final Plat - Truck Max - Truck Maintenance Facility (City Council District 

1). Final Plat of Lot 1, Block 1, Truck Max Addition, creating a non-residential lot on 2.782 

acres. Tract 2.2, BBB & CRR Railroad Survey, Abstract 202, Page 460, City of Grand Prairie, 

Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI), with SUP-1118, within the SH-161 Corridor 

Overlay District, and addressed as 3001 Hardrock Rd 

 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

 

4. PLT-22-07-0074 - Preliminary Plat - Oncor Grand Prairie Substation Addition (City Council 

District 3). Preliminary Plat of Lot 1, Block 1, Oncor Grand Prairie Substation Addition, 

creating one non-residential lot on 1.462 acres. Tract 800.2, Mercer Fain Survey, Abstract No. 

475, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (A), and addressed as 

1335 S. Belt Line Rd 

 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

 

5. PLT-22-07-0076 – Final Plat - Trinity Basin (City Council District 2). Final Plat for Trinity 

Basin Preparatory School, Lot 1, Block 1, Trinity Basin Addition, creating one non-residential 

lot on 9.439 acres. Tract 5.1, Edward O'Connor Survey, Abstract 1100, City of Grand Prairie, 

Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development (PD-99) with Genera Retail (GR) uses, 

within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District with an approximate address of 3116 Carrier 

Pkwy 

 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

 

6. PLT-22-07-0077 - Replat - Lots 1R3 & 2, Block 1, Kohl's Grand Prairie Addition (City Council 

District 5). Replat of Lot 1R1, Block 1, Kohl's Grand Prairie Addition, creating two commercial 

lots on 10.887 acres. Lot 1R1, Block 1, Kohl's Grand Prairie Addition, City of Grand Prairie, 

Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-20 & PD-21, within the IH 20 Corridor Overlay District, and 

addressed as 3865 S. Carrier Parkway 

 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

7. STP-22-07-0035 - Site Plan - Trinity Basin Preparatory (City Council District 2). Site Plan for 

Trinity Basin Preparatory School on 9.439 acres. Tract 5.1, Edward O'Connor Survey, Abstract 

1100, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development (PD-99) with 

Genera Retail (GR) uses, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District with an approximate 

address of 3116 Carrier Pkwy 

 Senior Planner Dana Woods presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

She stated the applicant seeks Site Plan approval to construct a K-8 School on 9.439 acres. The 

7

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – August 22, 2022   Page 4 of 6 

Unified Development Code (UDC) requires City Council approval of a Site Plan to ensure that 

the development meets requirements in the UDC by providing adequate circulation as well as 

quality site planning techniques. The UDC identifies criteria for evaluating proposed 

developments such as density and dimensional standards, landscaping and screening 

requirements, and architectural design requirements. 

 The applicant is requesting the following variances: 

1. Maximum Allowable Height – The UDC states that the maximum allowable height for 

the General Retail (GR) zoning district is 25 Ft. The top of roof deck is 32 ft. 

2. Glazing width per Facade – Appendix F requires that facades shall consist of 

windows that equal 50% of the length of all facades. The proposed elevations provide 

window glazing with 43% (north), 29% (west), and 42% (east) of the length of all 

facades. 

3. Glazing on Primary Facade – Appendix F requires that windows account for 30% of 

the area of the primary facade (Warrior Trail). Windows account for 15.4% of the 

primary facade. 

 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the condition that the 

applicant close the left turn onto Carrier Pkwy. during the drop-off/pick-up times. 

 

John Blacker 12801 N Central Ste 1400 Dallas TX., stepped forward representing the case.  

 

Lee Osborne 100 Throckmorton St Ste 1350 Fort Worth TX., stepped forward representing the 

case.  

 

Commissioner Coca asked who their Chief Academic Officer is. Mr. Osborne stated Leslie 

Austin. Mrs. Coca asked if it would be open enrollment. Mr. Osborne stated yes.  

Motion made by Commissioner Coleman, Seconded by Commissioner Fedorko to close the 

public hearing and approve item STP-22-07-0035 with variances and per staff 

recommendations. The motion carried 6-2. Voting Yea: Chairperson Smith, Commissioner 

Coleman, Commissioner Madden, Commissioner Perez, Commissioner Fedorko, 

Commissioner Caballero. Voting Nay: Commissioner Gonzalez, Commissioner Coca. 

 

8. STP-22-07-0034 - Site Plan - 2400 W Marshall Dr Industrial Warehouse (City Council District 

1). Site Plan for a Warehouse/Distribution center on 9.55 acres. Site 7, Great Southwest 

Industrial District, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI), 

and addressed as 2400 W Marshall Dr 

 Senior Planner Dana Woods presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

She stated the applicant seeks Site Plan approval to permit the construction of a 

Warehouse/Distribution Center. The zoning of the site is Light Industrial (LI) and permits the 

use by right. The Unified Development Code (UDC) requires City Council approval of a site 

plan to ensure that the development meets requirements in the UDC by providing adequate 

circulation as well as quality site planning techniques. The UDC identifies criteria for 

evaluating proposed developments such as density and dimensional standards, landscaping 

8

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – August 22, 2022   Page 5 of 6 

and screening requirements, and architectural design requirements. The applicant is not 

requesting any variances. The applicant is not requesting any variances. The Development 

Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

 Sidney Stratton 2021 McKinney Ave Ste 1050 Dallas TX., stepped forward representing the 

case.  

 Tyler Day 5739 Reiger Ave Dallas TX., stepped forward representing the case.  

 Commissioner Coleman asked will this be a speculative building. Ms. Stratton stated yes.  

Motion made by Commissioner Perez, Seconded by Commissioner Coca to close the public 

hearing and approve STP-22-07-0034. The motion carried 8-0. Voting Yea: Chairperson 

Smith, Commissioner Coleman, Commissioner Madden, Commissioner Perez, Commissioner 

Gonzalez, Commissioner Fedorko, Commissioner Coca, Commissioner Caballero. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

9. SUP-22-07-0028 - Specific Use Permit - Cielo Azul Banquet Hall (City Council District 5). 

Specific Use Permit for a Special Event Center on 0.364 acres. Lot 1, Block C, Chase Addition, 

City of Grand Prairie, Dallas, County, Texas, zoned General Retail One (GR-1), within the 

Central Business District addressed as 503 W Church St 

 Senior Planner Dana Woods presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

She stated the applicant intends to operate a special event center in a lease space in an existing 

commercial building at 503 W Church St. Special Event Centers require a Specific Use Permit 

according to the Unified Development Code (UDC). The purpose of the Specific Use Permit 

process is to identify those uses which might be appropriate within a zoning district, but due to 

either their location, functional or operational nature, could have a potentially negative impact 

upon surrounding properties; and provide for a procedure whereby such uses might be 

permitted by further restricting or conditioning them so as to eliminate such probable negative 

consequences. The applicant is not requesting any variances. The Development Review 

Committee (DRC) is unable to recommend approval due to the recent revocation of the SUP 

for this location. Staff has concerns regarding the issues that led to the recent revocation and 

the adjacent residential use. However, if the SUP is approved the building will have to be 

sprinkled according to fire codes. 

 Cruz Galvan 503 W Church St Grand Prairie TX., stepped forward representing the case, she 

stated she is the new owner of the building and will be running business differently from the 

previous owner. She stated a new security system was just installed and she would attend every 

event along with security.  

 Commissioner Madden asked if she reached out to her neighbors. Ms. Galvan stated no.  

 Commissioner Perez asked what her plans are to run her business differently. Ms. Galvan 

stated she plans to attend every event and be there until the events are over. She will always 

have security onsite and cautious on who she rents the event center to. Mrs. Perez inquired 

9

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – August 22, 2022   Page 6 of 6 

about the number of guests. Ms. Galvan stated at max they will have 100. Mrs. Perez then 

asked about parking. Mrs. Galvan stated they have parking in the front and in the back of the 

building, but previously they used the church’s parking without permission. 

 Commissioner Caballero asked what her level of experience is running an event center. Ms. 

Galvan stated 75%.  

 Lt. Tim Sliva Grand Prairie Police Department, stepped forward in opposition of this request, 

he stated the police department continues to have concerns regarding this event center at this 

location. He noticed the new owner would host the same events and have the same hours that 

the previous owner had which causes concern. Regarding the parking, future development 

where the church is located would take parking away.  

Motion made by Commissioner Caballero, Seconded by Commissioner Coleman to close the 

public hearing and deny SUP-22-07-0028. The motion carried 7-1. Voting Yea: Chairperson 

Smith, Commissioner Coleman, Commissioner Madden, Commissioner Perez, Commissioner 

Gonzalez, Commissioner Fedorko, Commissioner Caballero. Voting Nay: Commissioner Coca. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Chairperson Smith moved to adjourn the meeting. The meeting adjourned at 7:23 p.m. 

 

 

__________________ 

 

Cheryl Smith, Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________ 

 

Julia Perez, Secretary 

10

Item1.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/12/2022 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Dana Woods, AICP, Senior Planner  

TITLE: SUP-22-06-0024 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Victron 

Convenience and Gas (City Council District 4). Specific Use Permit 

and Site Plan for a Convenience Store with Gas Sales and a Carwash on 

4.528 acres. Tract 5B2 and 6C2 of the Jerome C Survey, Abstract 972, 

City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-255A, within 

the SH 360 Corridor Overlay District, and located at the NE corner of 

Lynn Creek/Mildred Walker Pkwy and SH-360 

APPLICANT: Victron Energy, Inc., Melinda Nelson 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Table 

  

 

11

Item2.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/12/2022 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Dana Woods, AICP, Senior Planner 

TITLE: CPA-22-07-0008 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Ascend at 

Forum (City Council District 2). Comprehensive Plan Amendment to 

change the Future Land Use Map from Mixed Residential to High 

Density Residential and Medium Density Residential on 17.782 acres. 

Multiple parcels located within the Charles D. Ball Survey, Abstracts 

197 and 1699, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant and Dallas Counties, 

Texas, zoned Planned Development (PD-265A) for Single Family, 

Multi-Family, and General Retail Uses, within the I-20 Corridor 

Overlay District with an approximate address of 2300 S Forum Dr 

APPLICANT: Jennifer Burns, DHI Communities 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Table 

  

 

12

Item3.



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/12/2022 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Dana Woods, AICP, Senior Planner 

TITLE: ZON-22-05-0015 – Ascend at Forum (City Council District 2). Zoning 

Change from PD-265 for Single Family, Multi-Family, and General 

Retail Uses to a Planned Development District for Single Family Zero 

Lot Line, Single Family Townhome, and Multi-Family and a Concept 

Plan depicting 522 units on 65.672 acres. Multiple parcels located 

within the Charles D. Ball Survey, Abstracts 197 and 1699, City of 

Grand Prairie, Tarrant and Dallas Counties, Texas, zoned Planned 

Development (PD-265A) for Single Family, Multi-Family, and General 

Retail Uses, within the I-20 Corridor Overlay District with an 

approximate address of 2300 S Forum Dr 

APPLICANT: Jennifer Burns, DHI Communities 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Table 

  

 

13

Item4.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 09/12/2022 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: June Sin, Planner 

TITLE: STP-22-08-0038 - Site Plan – First Baptist Church at 950 Mayfield 

(City Council District 2). Site Plan for Family Life Center on 19.30 

acres. Lot 1R, Block 1, First Baptist Church of Grand Prairie Addition, 

City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD- 91, within the 

SH-161 and I-20 Corridor Overlay Districts, and addressed as 950 

Mayfield Road 

APPLICANT: David Waite, Shanks Architects 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

SUMMARY: 

Site Plan for Family Life Center on 19.30 acres. Lot 1R, Block 1, First Baptist Church of Grand Prairie 

Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD- 91, within the SH-161 and I-20 

Corridor Overlay Districts, and addressed as 950 Mayfield Road. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant intends to construct an additional gymnasium for the existing church campus. Site Plan 

approval by City Council is required for any project within an overlay district or planned development 

district.  The property is within the SH-161 and I-20 Corridor Overlay Districts and zoned PD-91.  

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following Table 1 summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding 

properties. 

Table 1. Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North PD-91 Undeveloped 

South PD-294 Undeveloped 

West PD-364  Commercial Uses  

East PD-152 Commercial Uses/ Single Family Residential Uses 

14

Item5.



Page 2 of 3 

HISTORY: 

 February 18, 2014: The City Council approved a Specific Use Permit and Site Plan to allow the 

construction and operation of a religious institution with a child care center (Case Number 

SU140207/S140204).  

 April 21, 2015: The City Council approved a Site Plan Amendment to add an accessory structure 

(bus barn) to the existing First Baptist Church (Case Number S140204A). 

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

The 19.30-acres site consists of an existing 44,223 sq. ft. religious institution with a childcare center. 

The proposed 18,200 sq. ft. Family Life Center includes a gymnasium, a youth chapel, classrooms, and 

an outdoor patio. The site plan approved in 2014 accounted for this future expansion. No changes are 

proposed to the existing components including drive aisles, parking areas, and landscaping. All portions 

of the new building need to comply with Appendix F standards. 

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

Density and Dimensional Requirements 

The development is subject to Article 6 in the UDC. Table 2 below evaluates the density and 

dimensional standards of the proposed development.  The proposal meets the density and dimensional 

requirements.  

Table 2. Site Data Summary 

Standard Required (GR)  Required (MF-1)  Provided Meets 

Min. Lot Area (Acres) 5,000 12,000 840,272 Yes 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 100 1,525 Yes 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 120 937 Yes 

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 30 315 Yes 

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 45 760 Yes 

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 50 26 Yes 

Max. Floor Area Ratio (FAR)  0.35:1 N/A 0.075:1 Yes 

Parking Requirements 

No changes are proposed with this expansion. The previously approved site plan met parking 

requirements at the time, which accounted for future expansions at a fully developed capacity.  

Landscape and Screening 

No changes are proposed other than additional landscaping provided as a compensatory measure for the 

requested variances. The enhancement includes five canopy trees and 5,030 sq. ft. of ground covers on 

three sides of the new gymnasium. 

Building Elevations 

The exterior building materials include stone, brick, and stucco. Appendix F contains two window 

requirements. The first is that facades shall consist of windows in an area that equals 50% of the overall 

vertical surface of all facades or that equals 50% of the length of all facades. The second requirement is 

that windows shall account for 30% of the area of street-facing facades. The proposed building 

elevations do not meet these requirements. 

15

Item5.



Page 3 of 3 

Appendix F generally seeks to avoid blank exterior walls without architectural features and finishes, 

changes in material, and articulation. This proposal does provide some articulation features. 

 

VARIANCES: 

The applicant is requesting the following variances: 

1. Horizontal & Vertical Articulation – Variance to the requirement of horizontal and vertical 

articulations on all four facades.  

2. Overall Windows – Variance to the requirement that windows account for 50% of the area of all 

facades to allow the building to be constructed with windows that account for 16.25% of all 

facades. 

3. Windows on Street Facing Facades – Variance to the requirement that windows account for 30% 

of southeast and northeast facades to allow the building to be constructed with 12% windows on 

the southeast facade and 4.5% windows on the northeast facade.  

4. Awnings & Canopies – Variance to the requirement for covered walkways, awnings, canopies, 

or porticos along at least 25% of the length of all four facades to allow 12.7% of canopies.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. Staff does not object to the 

requested variances, noting that gynasiums typically do not have a lot of fenestrations and articulation. 

16

Item5.



Ro
bi

ns
on

 R
d

S Hwy 161 Sb  

Mayfield Rd

S Hwy 161 Nb  
S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

Ik
ea

 W
ay

S Hwy 161 Svc Sb Rd

Meadow Park Ln

Ca
th

ed
er

al 
Dr

Prairie Creek Dr

Hobbs Dr

Gr
ee

n B
ra

nc
h D

r

Fa ir fieldDr

SHw y161 SvcS bR d

´
Development Services

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦20

CASE LOCATION MAP
STP-22-08-0038
First Baptist Church Family Life Center

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1

17

Item5.



18

Item5.



19

Item5.



20

Item5.



21

Item5.



22

Item5.



23

Item5.



24

Item5.



25

Item5.



26

Item5.


	Top
	Item1.	Approval of Minutes of the August 22, 2022, P&Z meeting
	Approval of Minutes of the August 22, 2022 meeting
	Minutes 08-22-22

	Item2.	2022-09-12 PZ SUP-22-06-0024 Victron Convenience and Gas
	2022-09-12 PZ SUP-22-06-00024 - C Store_QSR_Car Wash_FINAL

	Item3.	2022-09-12 PZ CPA-22-07-0008 Ascend at Forum
	2022-09-12 PZ CPA-22-07-0008 Ascend at Forum_FINAL

	Item4.	2022-09-12 PZ ZON-22-05-0015 Ascend at Forum
	2022-09-12 PZ ZON-22-05-0015 Ascend at Forum 2300S Forum_FINAL

	Item5.	2022-09-12 PZ STP-22-08-0038 First Baptist Church at 950 Mayfield Road
	2022-09-12 PZ STP-22-08-0038 FBC 850 Mayfiled Dr_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Site Plan
	Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
	Exhibit D - Elevations
	Exhibit E - Renderings

	Bottom

